VLCC Personal Care Limited
Standalone IND AS Financial Statements for the year ended

March 31, 2019



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP e ate Tower-B

Sector - 42, Sector Road
Chart '
artered Accountants Gurugram - 122 002, Haryana, India

Tel :+91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of VLCC Personal Care Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of VLCC Personal Care
Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. '

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Companies Director’s report but does not include the
standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnershi;.) with LLP identity No, AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeqguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements corhply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 11" to
this report;
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(9) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 26(i) to the standalone Ind
AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fi egistration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogender Seth

Partner

Membership Number: 094524
UDIN: 19094524AAAABF1025

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 16, 2019
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph 1 of the section on “Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: VLCC Personal Care Limited (“the Company™)

i. (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of
the company.

iil. The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

iil. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iiiXa), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans and advances given, investments
made and, guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the company. The
provisions of section 185 are not applicable on the Company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products of the Company.

vii. (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, duty of custom, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay
in a few cases for goods and services tax. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales tax, value added
tax and entry tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Name of the Nature of Amosmt Period for which the amount Forum, where the
Statue dues under dispute relates dispute is pending
(Rs. In lacs)

Income Tax Income Tax 32.30 Assessment Year 2012-13 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeal)
Income Tax Income Tax 38.16 Assessment Year 2013-14 Ccommissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeal)
Income Tax Income Tax 90.11 Assessment Year 2014-15 Income Tax Appellate
Act, 1961 Tribunal
Income Tax Income Tax 134.87 Assessment Year 2015-16 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeal)
Tamil Nadu Sales Tax 9.89 Assessment Year 2003-04 Appellate Tribunal,
General tax Act, Tamil Nadu
1959
Kerala Value Value Added 5.70 Assessment Year 2012-13 Appellate
Added tax Rules, Tax and 2014-15 Commissioner
2005
West bengal Value | Value Added 22.58 Assessment Year 2012-13 Appellate
Added tax Rules, Tax Commissioner
2005
West Bengal Tax Entry Tax 22.18 Assessment Year 2015-16 Joint Commissioner
on Entry of Goods
into Local Areas
Act, 2012
West Bengal Tax Entry Tax 22.06 Assessment Year 2016-17 Joint Commissioner
on Entry of Goods
into Local Areas
Act, 2012

viii.

Xi.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a
financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has utilized the monies raised by way term loans for the
purposes for which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the

year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
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Xii.

mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause

~ 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him as referred to in Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Per Yo

Partner
Membership Number: 094524

der Seth

UDIN: 19094524AAAABF1025

Place: Gurugram

Date: S

eptember 16, 2019
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ANNEXURE Il TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VLCC PERSONAL CARE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VLCC Personal Care
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yoq&&ir Seth
Partner

Membership Number: 094524
UDIN: 19094524AAAABF1025

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 16, 2019
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YLCC Personal Care Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
CIN No.-US2212DL2000PLC107566

(AN amownts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(refer noie 2.3}
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5(a) 3,677 3,652
Capital work in progress 5(a) : - 156
Intangible assets 5 (b} 118 162
Tntangible assets under development 5 5 -
Tavestment in subsidiaries 6 2268 1,980
Financial assets
- Loans 70 45 38
- Other bank batances 7(e) 8 3
Other non- carrent assets 8 111 242
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 2,016 2,075
Total Nen-current assets 8,248 8,313
. Current assets
Inventories 10 3,174 2,928
Financial assets
- Investments ** 7 (a) 0 0
- Loans 7(b) 48 3
- Trade receivabies () 7215 8,721
- Cash and cash equivalents 7(d) 368 240
« Other bank balances 7() 15 14
- (rhers (M 1 1
Other current assets 8 1,357 2283
Current tax assets (net) 1 355 353
Total Current assets 12,533 14,543
Total Assets 20,781 22,856
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 438 438
Other equity:
Share premium 4 1.462 1,462
General reserve 4 209 209
Retained earnings 4 7,781 9,959
Total Equity 9,290 12,068
LIABILITIES
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilities:
- Borrowings 1B@ 1,054 768
- QOther financial Habilities 13 () 78 77
Provisions 14 141 116
Other non current liabilities 15 14 17
Total Non= current liabilities 1,287 978
Current liabilities
Contract Linbility 16 A 358 Kril
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 13 (a) 4,260 4,306
- Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 27 49 i6
small enterprises;
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 13(d) 4,281 4,613
enterprises and small enterprises
- Other financial liabilities 13 (¢} 311 325
Provisions 14 86 71
Other Cusrent liabilities 15 259 158
Total Current liabilities 0,604 9,816
Tatal Equity and Liabilities 20,781 22,856

** Absolute nwmbers before round off is INR 20,000 as at March 31st 2019 and March 315t 2018.
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
i ration Number:101049W/E3I00004

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
VLCC Personal Care Limited

CINJU32212DL200JPLC107566
»

Jayant Khosia
Director

DIN: 08321843
Place: Gurgaon
Date: 16th Septey




¥YLCC Personal Care Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 201%
CIN No.-U52212DL2000PLC107566

(Al amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
Revenue from contracts with customers 16 A 19,666 21,212
Qther operating revenue 16B 248 705
Other income 17 166 25
Total revenue A 20,080 21,942
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 19 5,998 5,786
Purchases of stock-in-trade 20 1,614 949
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories of stock-in-trade 21 (145) {136)
Employee benefits expense 22 3,708 2,896
Other expenses 24 10,079 12,778
Total expenses Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) B 21,254 22,273
Earnings Before Inferest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) C=A-B) {1,174 {331)
Finance Income D 18 9 7
Finance costs E 23 540 458
Depreciation and amortisation expense F 5 414 353
Lass before tax G=({C+D-E-F) 2,119) (L,13%)
Tax expenses:
Current tax - -
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 33 59 (292)
Total tax expenses H 59 (292)
Loss for the year I=(G-H) (2,178) (843)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not to be reciassified fo profit or loss in subsequent periods:
- Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans * 29 0 3)
- Income tax credit/(charge) of above item ** )] 1
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year J [} (2)
Total Comprehensive loss for the year K=(I+J) {2,178) (R845)
Earnings per share (of INR 10 each):
Basic in INE. 25 (49.79) (19.31)
Diluted in INR 25 49.79) (19.31)
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

* Absolute number before round off is INR 48,955
** Ahsohute number before round off is INR (14,256)

The accompaying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per owr repiort of cven date

For S R Batiiboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Membership No: 94524

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 16th September 2019

For and on behalf of board of directors of
VLCC Personal Care Limited
CIN-U52212DL2000PLC107566

Qrrol—s

Jayant Khosla
Director
DIN: 08321843

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 16th September 2019

Director

DIN: (0043118



¥LCC Personal Care Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
CIN No.-U52212D12MHOPLC107566

(AR amounis in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 Maurch 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net {lossVprofit before tax 2,119) {1,135)
Adjustment fo reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: |
Depreciation and amortisation 414 353
Loss on sale / write off of fixed assets 5 15
Finance costs 512 439
Interest income (4] ()]
Provision / (reversal of provision) for doubtful trade receivables 92) 525
Pravision for doubtful advances 14 31
Provision for inventory 12 224
Taventory Written offfadjusiment 7 415
Rad debis and Advances written off 45 1
Net unrealised exchange (gain) / loss (155) (13)
Operating profit before working capital changes (1,045) 843
Working Capital Adjusiments;
Increase in provisions 39 39
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories ‘ - (586} (878)
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables and other financial assets 1,659 {L61T)
Decrease / (Increase) in other assets 916 (L,831)
(Decrease) / Increase in frade payables and other financial liabilities (289) 2,304
Increase / {Decrease) in other liabilities, contract linbility and refimd liability 135 1G]
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 829 {1,13%)
Income tax paid (1) (66)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 828 {1,249)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including capital work in progress and capital advances 147) (623)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1 19
Interest received 3 16
Acquisition of Vanity Cube Mobile SPA and Saloon Private Limited - (115)
Acquisition of VLCC QOuline Services Private Limited (16) {114)
Investment in preference shares of Vanity Cube Mobile SPA and Saloon Private Eimited (265) (220)
[nvestment in preference shares of VLCC Online Services Private Limited [C)] 27}
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) {2) 115
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (430) {949)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non current financial liabilities-borrowings 387 as1
Repayment of non cunrent financial liahilities-borrowings (100} (io1)
Proceeds from current financial liabilities-borrowings (44 2,484
Interest paid (513) (430)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities ((_1) ‘ (270} 2,304
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 128 106
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 240 134
368 240
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 5 1
Cheques in hand 355 150
Halances with banks- current accowits 3 89
368 240
There are no changes in liabilities arising from financing activities other than cash flow changes.
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S R Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of board of directors of

tion No: 101049W/E300004 VLCC Personal Care Limited
CIN-U52212DL2000PLC107566

(ol

— .
Jayant Khosla Sandeep Ahtija

1CAI Firm R

Director Director
Membership DIN: 08321843 DIN: 00043118
Place: Gurgaon lace: Gurgaon

Date: 16th September 2019



VLCC Personal Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR Lakh unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. Corporate information

VLCC Personal Care Limited (‘the Company’) is an unlisted public limited Company domiciled in India
and was incorporated in India on September 6, 2000 under the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable
in India. The Company is principally engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of skin-care, hair-
care and body-care products across India. The registered office of the Company is located at M-14 Greater
Kailash-II, Commercial Complex New Delhi.

These separate financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on 16" September 2019.

2, Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared in accordance with Ind
AS. The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company presents Earnings before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) in the
statement of profit or loss, this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The terms EBITDA are not defined
inInd AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule III allows companies to present Line items, sub —line items and sub-
totals shall be presented as an addition or substitution on the face of the Financial Statements when such
presentation is relevant to an understanding of the Company’s financial position or performance or to cater
to industry /sector- specific disclosure requirements or when required for compliance with the amendments
to the Companies Act or under the Indian Accounting Standards.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present earnings before interest income and expense, tax,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and
Loss. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance
costs, and tax expense.

Rounding Off Amounts

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily fo urpose of trading

" & 4
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e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of

assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as

12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

b) Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. The functional currency and items included in the financial statements are measured using that
functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Treatment of exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement of foreign currency non-monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

e Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

¢ Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

¢) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

o Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-ﬁnanc1al asset takes into account a market pamc1pant’s ablllty to
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is 51gnlﬁcant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration, wherever applicable. At each reporting
date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to
be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

d) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of Products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Company transfers the control of goods to the
customer as per the terms of contract, generally on delivery of the products. The Company considers
whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company
considers the effects of variable consideration, non-cash considerations and consideration payable to the
customer (if any). The Company believes that the control gets transferred to the customer on delivery of
the goods to the customers.

Rights of return
Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the damaged goods within a specified period.
The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this

method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The
requ1rements inInd AS 115 on constralmng est1mates of varlable conS1derat1on are also apphe i
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that are expected to be returned, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset
(included in inventory) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a customer.

Non-cash consideration

The Company receives advertising services in return of sale of products to select customers. The fair
value of such non-cash consideration received from the customer is included in the transaction price when
goods are delivered to the customer. The Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 113 Fair Value
Measurement in measuring the fair value of the non- cash consideration. If the fair value cannot be
reasonably estimated, the non-cash consideration is measured indirectly by reference to the stand-alone
selling price of the goods sold.

Variable consideration:
Volume rebates

Variable consideration in the form of volume rebates is recognised at the time of sale made to the
customers and are offset against the amounts receivable from them. To estimate the variable consideration
for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the expected value method. The selected method
that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining
estimates of variable consideration and recognises a liability for the expected future rebates.

Display charges

The Company commonly pays retailers, charges to have their goods displayed prominently on shelves. As
these charges do not provide a good or service distinct from sale of products by the Company, this is
treated as a reduction to the transaction price.

Contract balances:
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore are all classified as current. Where the
settlement is due after one year, they are classified as non-current. Trade receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.
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Impact of Ind AS 115 has been given in Note 2.3.

Interest income

Income from interest on time deposits is recognised on the time proportion method taking into consideration
the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rates using the effective interest rate (EIR).

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

¢) Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit
of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by
governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect
of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised
and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

f) Taxes
Income taxes consist of current taxes and changes in deferred tax liabilities and assets.

Current income tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
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*  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

¢ Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. ' ‘ '

In the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in .
India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or
liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the
extent the Company’s gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred
tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in
which the timing differences originate. However, the Company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets
to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may. be, that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For
recognition of deferred taxes, the timing differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

g) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses if any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant and equipment
are ready for use, as intended by the management.
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Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. The
cost of property, plant and equipment includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of
qualifying property, plant and equipment up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use and other
incidental expenses incurred up to that date.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to note 14 and 23
regarding significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptlons and provisions for further
information about the recorded Asset retirement liability.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work in progress
Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method over the estimated
useful life of the assets at rates specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, which is as follows:

Particulars ' Useful life (Years)
Plant and Machinery 15 years
Building 30 years/20 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Lab Equipment 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipments :

e Servers 6 years

o Desktops/ laptops 3 years

- Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease, including the optional period of lease
Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are acquired/installed. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is
provided for upto the date of sale, deduction, discardment as the case may be.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of
an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense
when incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured
and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful life (Years)
Trademarks 10 years
Computer software 6 years

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each
financial year and the amortization method is revised to reflect the changed pattern.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

i) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. In accordance with an opinion received from the expert advisory
committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company has during the year capitalized
borrowing costs in respect of construction of qualifying assets completed within a period of five to seven
months.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing .of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

j) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
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arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease where risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor is classified as operating lease.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Company has ascertained that the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases and therefore are not
straight-lined. Hence, the lease payments are recognised on an accrual basis as per terms of the lease
agreement.

k) Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Cost of raw materials, components and stores and spares is determined on a First in First Out (FIFO)
basis. Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted
as inventories.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Cost is determined on First in First Out (FIFO) basis.

Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition including
octroi and other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges. Work in Progress and finished goods
include appropriate proportion of overheads wherever applicable. Goods in transit are valued at cost
excluding import duties.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on
First in First Out (FIFO) basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

I) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount based on estimates of future cash flows arising from continuing use of such
assets and from its ultimate disposal. A provision for impairment loss is recognised where it is probable
that the carrying value of an asset exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded Companies or other
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available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to
OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation
surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash generating unit’s (“CGU”) recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 March at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

m) Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs
are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and
are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax
rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated
future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the
estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
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n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the
provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the
related service. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company operates an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Benefits payable to
eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the
basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972, the plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service
or on termination of employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year
of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation is
determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan
assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled. The resultant actuarial
gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change in return of the plan
assets is recognised as an income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit as the Company has no unconditional right to
defer the liability. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

0) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement ‘ :

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most applicable to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
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arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the trade receivable (financial assets) and credit risk exposure.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the
P&L. .

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings or as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, etc.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial fecognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as
a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

p) Earnings/ (loss) per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only
if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented




VLCC Personal Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR Lakh unless otherwise stated)

q) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part
of the Company’s cash management.

r) Investments

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or

has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those

returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if

the Company has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary,

in the value of such investments. Current investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair

value. Cost of investments include, acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

s) Segment Reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and
the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which
separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated
regularly by the executive management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified
to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on
market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on reasonable basis are included under ‘unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities.

t) Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of
adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an
impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or
amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.
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Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18
Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers.
Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and
requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption. The Company did not
apply any of the available optional practical expedients. There is no impact of adoption of Ind AS 115 on
retained earnings as on April 1, 2017.

The effect of adoption of Ind AS 115 is as follows:

Impact on Statement of Profit and Loss (increase / (decrease) in profit):

Adjustments Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (a) (1,392) (1,171)
Other expenses (a) 1,392 1,171

There is no impact of application of Ind AS 115 on loss before tax as well as basic and diluted earnings per share.

Impact on Balance Sheet (increase / (decrease) in equity):

Adjustments As at March | As at March
31,2019 31,2018
Other current liabilities (b) 358 321
Contract liability (b) (358) (321)
Provisions - current (c) 437 250
Trade receivables (c) (437) (250)

There is no impact of application of Ind AS 115 on total equity

The nature of these adjustments is described below:
a) Display charges and other rebates

Before Ind AS 115, display charges and other rebates (e.g. joint promotional schemes with select customers)
were disclosed in other expenses. However, after adoption of Ind AS 115, these are adjusted to the
transaction price as these do not represent a good or service distinct from sale of products. Accordingly,
revenue from contracts with customers has decreased by INR 1,392 lakh and INR 1,171 lakh for the year
ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively, with a corresponding decrease in other expenses.
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b) Contract Liability

Before Ind AS 115, advances from customers were disclosed under other current liabilities. However, after
adoption of Ind AS 115, advances from customers represent contract liability and thus, contract liability
has been recognised separately in balance sheet for prior periods presented with a corresponding decrease
in other current liabilities.

¢) Refund Liability

Before Ind AS 115, an estimate for expected sales return was included in provisions. However, after
adoption of Ind AS 115, provision for expected sales return represent refund liability and thus, refund
liability has been netted off from trade receivables for all periods presented with a corresponding decrease
in provisions.

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2017 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018
amending the following standard:

Ind AS 116 Leases:

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices
thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases
under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for leases - leases of low value assets
(e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e. lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e. right of use asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will also be required to re-measure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a
change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the re-measurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right of use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under Ind AS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and
distinguish between two types of leases operating and finance leases. :

Ind AS 116, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, requires lessees and
lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under Ind AS 17.
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The Company has established an implementation team to implement and evaluate the changes to accounting
system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary. The evaluation is
pending as at year end, however the Company does not expect any material impact on the financial
statements upon application of the standard.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income
tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability
of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies
have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely
amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this
approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance
with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight
and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting
equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2019. The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative
effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The Company has established an implementation team to implement and evaluate the changes to accounting
system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12,
‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those
past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
Company has established an implementation team to implement and evaluate the changes to accounting
system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement.

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’,
in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:
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period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

« to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in
a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1,2019. The
Company has established an implementation team to implement and evaluate the changes to accounting
system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the results are known/ materialise.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities-and office premises. The
Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as
the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair
value of the asset, that it significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties are not transferred
to the Company and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
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involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 29.
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3 Equity Share Capital Amount
As at April 1, 2017 438
Add : Issue of equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2018 438
As at April 1, 2018 438
Add : Issue of equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2019 438
Refer note 12

4 Other Equity

Attributable to the equity holders of the Holding Company

Particulars Reserves and Surplus

Security General reserve| Retained carnings Total

premium

At April 1, 2017 (refer note 2.3 1,462 209 10,803 12,474
Profit/ (loss) for the year - - (843) (843)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - 2) (2)
At March 31, 2018 (refer note 2.3) 1,462 209 9,959 11,630
Profit/ (loss) for the year (2,178) (2,178)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - Q [1]
At March 31,2019 1,462 209 7,781 9,452
Notes:
Security premium; Represenis the premium received upon issues of shares in earlier years and can be utilized as per the provisions of Companies
Act; 2013,

General reserve: The amount in general reserve has been recorded as per Companies {Transfer of Profits to Rescrves) Rules, 1975 on declaration of
dividend in earlier years.

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1}
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants VLCC Personal Care Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number:1 01049W/E300004 CIN-1J52212D1L.2000PLC 107566

Jayant Khosla Sandeep ‘uja

Director Director
Membershp No. : 94524 DIN: 08321843 DIN: 00043118
Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon

Date: 16th September 2019 Date: 16th September 2019
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6 Investment In Subsidiaries

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Unquoted instruments fully paid up
Investment in subsidiaries (at cost)
5000 (March 31, 2018: 5,000) Equity shares of INR100 each, fully paid up VLCC
Wellness Research Centre Private Limited 1,504 1,504
17,998 (March 31,2018: 17,998) Fquity shares of INR10 each, fully paid up Vanity
Cube Mobile SPA and Saloon Private Limited 115 s
4,855,000 (March 31,2018: 2,205,000) Preference shares of INR10 each, fully paid
up Vanity Cube Mobile SPA and Saloon Private Limited 486 220
19,015 (March 31,2018; 19,015) Bquity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up VLCC
Ornline Services Private Limited 129 114
140,000 (March 31,2018: 120,000) Preference shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up
VLOC Online Services Private Limited E Ly
1,268 1,980

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,268 1,980

Apgregate provision for diminution in value of investments

Vanity Cube Mobile SPA and Saloon Private Limited has negative net worth, however, the Company basis value in use determined using Discounted Cash Flow ('DCF’), does not

consider there to be any impairment.

7 Financial Asssets

7 (a) Investmenis

Asgat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Investment in government securities (unquoted) (at amortised cost) *
& year National Savings Certificate (pledged with sales tax authorities) 0 1]
[ 0
* Absolute amounts before rounding off are INR. 20,000 as at March 31,2019 and March 31, 2018
7(b) Loans
As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{Unsecured coasidered good unless otherwise stated) (at amortised cost)
Non Current
Security deposits
- Considered good 45 38
- Considered doubtful 4 4
] 49 42
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits €] {4)
45 38
7(b) Current
Loans and advances to employees 48 3
48 3
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7(c) TradeReceivables

7(d)

7{e)

Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3}
“Trade receivables from related parties considered good - Unsecured [refer note 31] 3272 3,054
—Trade receivables from other parties considered good - Unsecured 3,943 5,667
-Trade receivables - credit impaired 1,192 1,284
8,407 10,005
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables (1,192) {1,284)
7,215 8,721

respectively in which any director is a partier, a director or & member.

Trade receivables are non interest beasing, Provision for doubtful recievables include Rs

Cash And Cash Equivalents

400 lakhs towards dues from related party.

No other trade receivables are due from the directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, or from firms or private companics

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2048
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand* 5 1
Cheques in hand 355 150
Balances with banks
In current accounts & 89
368 240
*Includes foreign currencies equivalent to** 2 0
#% Apsolute amount before round off are INR 37,516 as at March 31, 2018
Other Bank Balances
‘ As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Non Current
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 8 8
8
Current
Dreposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 15 - 14
15 14
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7(f) Other Financial Assels

As at Asat
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Interest accrued on bank deposits 1 1
1 1
8 Other Assets
Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Non-Current
Capital advances 8 135
Prepaid Expenses 3 3
Prepaid Asset- Leasehold Land 94 98
Balances with government authorities
-Sales tax paid under protest (refer note 26) -] 6
Considered doubtful
Sales tax paid under protest 21 21
Provision for doubtful advances 2D 21)
111 242
urrent
Prepaid expenses 43 13
Balances with government aythorities
Excise duty credit receivable 16 16
Goods and Service Tax (GST) Input / CENVAT Credit ’ ‘ 454 699
Goods and Service Tax (GST) Refund Receivable® 312 671
Advance to suppliers 395 77
Others
Duty drawback 8 9
Focus product scheme (FPS) license 129 104
1,357 2,283
Considered doubtful
Loans and advances to employees 23 9
Advance to suppliers 16 16
Others
Duty drawback 5 5
44 30
1ess: Provision for doubtful advances (44) (30
1,357 2,283

* GST refund is receivable under Budgetary Support offered by the Government of India as per scheme notified vide Notification dated 05/10/2017 issued by DIFP and as per

CBEC Circular No. 1060/9/2017-CX dated 27/11/22017.
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92 Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferved tax asset 362 421
Minimum Altemative Tax credit entitlement 1,654 1,654
2,016 2,075
10 Inventories
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Raw materials and components 574 561
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory (56) 21)
518 540
Packing Materials 937 778
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory (211) {175}
. 726 603
Work in Progress-semi finished products 20 25
Finished goods [refer note (i) below] 1,626 1,505
(Incl. stock in transit INR 54 lakh March 31, 2018: INR 41 lakh)
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory {6%) {111)
1,558 1,394
Stock in trade [refer note (ii) below] 390 420
(lncl. stock in transit INR 2 lakh March 31, 2018: INR 19 lakh)
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory (38) (54
352 366
3,174 2,928
Notes:
(i) Finished poods include goods aggregating to INR 749 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 961 lakh) lying with C&F agents.
(ii)  Stock-in-irade includes goods aggregating to INR 242 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 361 lakh) lying with C&F agents.
11 Current Tax Assets (Net)
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advance tax [net of Provision INR 3,146 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 3,146 lakh)] 355 353
355 353

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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12 Equity Share Capital

As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
{a) Authorised shares
5,000,000 (March 31, 2018 : 5,000,000) Equity shares of INR 10/~ each 500 500
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
4,375,000 (March 31, 2018 ; 4,375,000 Equity shares of TNR 10/- each ' 438 438
438 438
Notes:
(i) Reconciliation of the shares ouistanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting peciod:
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid N"i;] ‘Zf.’k';‘;'“ Amount
At March 31, 2017 (restated) 414 438
Issued during the year - -
At March 31, 2018 (restated) 44 438
Issued during the year - -
At March 31, 2019 4d 438

(i) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The Dividend praposed by the Board of directors is subject to the

approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual general meeting.

During the year no interim/ final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company.

Tn the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining asséts of the Company, after
distribution of alk preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares heid by the shareholders.

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company, their subsidiaries and associates:

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Nao. of No. of
Shares held % Shares held %
Equity shares
VLCC Health Care Limited, the holding company 4,374,994 99.99% 4,374,994 99.99%

(iv) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding mare than 5% shares:

As at March 31, 2015

As at March 31, 2018

Nao. of Na. of
Shares held % Shares held Yo
Equity shares
VILCC Health Care Limited 4,374,994 99.9% 4,374,994 99.99%
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13

13 (a)

Motes:

(i)

(iif)
(iv)

Financial Ligbilities
Borrowings
As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current
Term Loans from bank-secured [refer note (i) below] 739 936
Current maturities of term loans from bank disclosed under "Other Current Financial . 197 (197)
Liabilities” [Refer note 13 {c) 1
542 739
Vehicle Loan from bank -secured-{refer note (i) below] 29 44
Current maturities of vehicle loans from bank disclesed under "Other Current . an (15)
Financial Liabilities” [Refer note 13 (¢}
Unsecured borrowings from Palm Land Hospitality Private Limited [refer note (iii) below] 500 -
512 29
1,054 768
Current
Cash Credit Loan -secured [refer note (iv) below] 3,260 1,306
Working Capital Demand Loan -secured [refer note (iv) below] 1,000 3.000
4,260 4,306

The term loan is taken from HDFC Bank on a interest rate at MCLR plus 0.45% pa for the purpose of new plant at Guwahati. The loan is secured by an exclusive charge on the
1and, building and movable assets located at the new manufacturing facility situated at Guwahati and second pari passu charge on all curent assets of the Company. Originally the
loan is repayable in 60 monthly instatlments out of which 33 monihly instalments of INR 16.43 lakh and interest was repayable as on 31st March 2019.

Some of the financial covenant as per term loan agreement of HDFC bank limited was not met during the year and the Company has informed the bank about the same. The bank
has not yet demanded the repayment, accordingly the term loan of Rs 542 lacs has been disclosed as ‘non-current’

The vehicle loan is taken from Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. is taken on a interest rate of 9.39% p.a . The loans are secured by hypothecation of respective vehicles, Originally the
loan was repayable in 60 monthly installments out of which 8 monthly instalments of INR 1.55 lakh along with interest was repayable as on 31st March 2019.

The unsecured loan Yas been taken from Palm Land Hospitality Private Limited and is payable within 3 years alongwith interest at 12% pa

Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of the secured short- As at As at
term borrowings: March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Cash Credit Loan from banks:

Yes Bank ‘ ‘ ' 330 Al
HDFC Bank 2,930 604
Standard Chartered Bank - 291
3,260 1,306
Working Capital Demand Loan from banks:
HDFC Bank _ - 2,000
Yes Bank 1,000 1,000
1,000 3,000
Current Borrowings _ 4,260 4,306
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(a)  Cashcredit loan from Yes bank is secured against first pati passu charge on all the current assets (both carrent & future) excluding current asssts located at Matia Industrial Growth
Centre(Assam) & second pari passu charge on all the moveable fixed assets {both current & future) except vehicle & MFA located at Matia Industrial Growth Cenire(Assam) and

payable on demand along with interest at MCLR plus 0.9%

(b}  Cashcredit lean from HDFC bank is secured against first pari passu charge on all the current assets (both current & future) & second pari passu charge on all the moveable fixed

assets (both current & future) and payable on demand along with interest at MCLR plus 0.6%

(¢}  Working capital demand loan from Yes bank is secured against first pari passu charge on all the current assets (both current & future) excluding current assets located at Matia
Industrial Growth Centre{Assam) & second pari passu charge on all the moveable fixed assets (both current & future) except vehicle & MFA located at Matia Industrial Growth

Centre{ Assam) and payable on demand along with interest at MCLR plus 2%
13 (b} Trade Payables

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4,043 4,377
- Total outstanding dues of related party creditors (refer note 31) 238 236
4,281 4,613
Trade payables, except for micro and small enterprises, are non-interest bearing.
13 (¢) Other Financial Liabilities
As at Ag at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current
Security deposits received ' ' ' 78 77
78 77
Current )
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 15 19
Payables for capital purchases 58 83
Interest payable on security deposits 4 4
Interest accrued on trade payables 20 7
Current maturities of term loans from bank [refer note 13(a) - Borrowings above] 197 197
Current maturities of vehicle loans from bank [refer nate 13(a) - Borrowings abovej 17 15
31 315
14 Provisions
As at Asat
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
Non Current
Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for gratuity (refer note 29) 108 86
Provision for decommissioning liabilities- Asset retirement obligation ‘ 33 30
141 116
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Current

Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for compensated absences
Provision for gratuity (refer note 25}

Provision for decommissioning liabilities
Under operating lease agreements entered by the Company,

66 58
20 13
86 71

it has to incur restoration cost for restoring lease premises to the original condition at the time of expiry of lease period.

Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
At the beginning of the year 30 27
Arising during the year 3 3
33 30
15 Other Liabilities
Az at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
Non-Current
Deferred grant liability 14 17
14 17
urrent
TDS payable 41 56
Goods and service tax (GST) Payable 193 60
Other statutory dues 22 39
Deferred grant liability 3 3
259 158

{This space has been left biank intentionally)
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16 A Revenue From Contracts With Customers

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2,3}
Sale of products [refer note (i) below]
Manufactured goods 17,549 19,643
Traded goods 2117 1,569
Revenue from contracts with customers 19,666 21,212
Disaggregated revenue information
(6] Type of goods Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
Manufac ds
Skin Care 6,284 6,200
Sun Care 2027 1,996
Facial Kits 5,623 7441
Bleach 1,403 1,648
Others (such as Professional Range, Mens Range etc.) 2212 2,358
17,54% 19,643
Traded goods
Skin Care 718 709
Others {such as Hair Care, Eye Care ete.} 1,399 860
2,117 1,569
Revenue from contracts with customers 19,666 21,212
(ii)  Refer Note 30 for reconciliation of revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment information.
(iii}  Timing of revenue recognition Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
Goods transferred at a point in time 19,666 21,212
Revenue from contracts with customers 19,666 21,212
(iv)  Contract balances Asat As at
March 31, 201% March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
Trade receivables 7215 2,721
Contract liabilities 358 321
Note:

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days and are net of refund Hability.
Contract liabilities includes advance from cusioiners received for supply of goods.
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\))]

3

168

Set out below is the amount of revenue recoguised from: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
Included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period 274 251
Right of return assets and refund liabilities Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(refer note 2.3)
Right of return assets (included in inventories) 82 -
Refund liability (netted off from trade receivables) 437 250
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended
with the contracted price March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)
Revenue as per contracted price 28,599 29,167
Adjustmenis:
Sales discounts and schemes 4,224 3,325
Display charges 873 974
Sales retumns 3,836 3,656
Revenue from contracts with customers 19,666 21212
Other Operating Revenue
Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
GST-Refund* 210 671
FPS License 25 271
Duty drawback 13 13
248 705
# (ST refund is receivable under Budgetary Support offered by the Government of India as per scheme notified vide Notification dated 05/10/2017 issued by DIPP and as per

CBEC Cireular No. 1060/9/2017-CX dated 27/11/2017.
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17 Other [ncome

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 155 17
Miscellancous income 11 8
166 25
18 Finance Income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest income [refer note (i) below] 9 7
9 7
Notes:
(i) Interest income comprises:
- Interest from banks on deposits 1 5
« Interest on loans and advances * 1 Q
- Interest on security deposits ** 1 0
- Interest on deferred grant liability 3 -
. Interest on investment in preference shares of subsidiary 3 2
9 7

* Absolute number before round off is 21,252 as at March 31,2018
*¢ Ahsolute numbers before round off are INR 38,044 as at March 31, 2018

(This space has been left blank intentionaily}
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21

Cost Of Materials Consumed
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Raw Materials Consumed
Opening stock 560 381
Add: Purchases 2,836 2272
3,396 2,653
Less: Closing stock 574 560
A 2,822 2,003
Packing materials Consumed
Opening stock 778 734
Add: Purchases 3,264 3,616
4,042 4,350
Less: Closing stock 937 778
B 3,105 3572
Less : Provision for obsolete and slow moving Inventory C @n (121
(A+B-C) 5,998 5,786
Purchase Of Traded Goods
‘ Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2012 March 31, 2018
Purchase of goods held for resale 1,614 249
Changes Tn Inventpries Of Finished Goods, Stock-In-Trade And Work-In-Progress
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Inventories at the end of the vear:
Finished goods 1,626 1,505
Stock-in-trade 390 420
Work-in-progress 20 25
A 2.036 1,550
Inventeries at the bepinning of the year:
Finished goods 1,505 1,246
Stock-in-trade 420 447
Work-in-progress 25 18
' B 1,950 1,711
Less ; Provision / (reversal of provision) for obsolete and slow moving Inventory C 59 (103)
(Increase) in inventories (B-A-C) (145) {136)
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22 Employee Benefits Expense

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries and wages 3,438 2,659
Contributions to provident fund [refer note 29] 156 128
Gratuity [refer note 29] 38 kL
Staff welfare expenses 76 75
3,708 2,896
23 Finance Costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest expense:
on loans 97 81
on cash credit 412 356
on trade payables 14 7
on late deposit of tax * ¢ 0
on security deposits 4 4
on asset retirement obligation 3 3
Bank charges 10 7
540 458

* Absolute humbers before round off are INR 38,543 and INR 9,349 as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

(This space hos been left blank Intentionaliy}
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24

Other Expenses
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{refer note 2.3)
Power and fuel 163 154
Rent [refer note 32] 128 103
Sub-contracting expenses 521 558
Warehouse charges 151 165
Security expenses 55 50
Consumables 41 49
Freight and forwarding charges 656 782
Octroi 2 22
Repairs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 31 43
Repairs and mainienance - Building® 0 1
Repairs and mainienance - Others 118 138
Vehicle running and maintenance 60 60
Printing and stationery 14 16
Insurance 27 21
Rates and taxes 6 58
Communication expenses 100 118
Travelling and conveyance 931 919
Advertisement 1,392 2,111
Sales prometion 3,467 4,240
Commission for sales 662 634
Market support services [refer note 3] 437 541
General maintenance expenses 260 275
CSR expenses [refer note 34] 18 21
Legal and professional 479 360
Payments to auditors {refer note below] 19 15
Provision / (reversal of provision) for doubtful trade receivables (92) 525
Provision for doubtful advances 14 31
Provision for inventory 12 : 224
Inventory writien offadjustments 327 415
Loss on sale of fixed assets 5 15
Bad debts written off 41 -
Advances and deposits written ofl 5 1
Miseellaneous expenses 29 113
10,079 12,778
Noie;
Payments to the auditors:
Audit fee 17 14
Reimbursement of expenses 2 1
19 15

* Absolute amount before round off is TNR 5,177 as at 3 1st March 2019
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26
)

(8}

(b}

o

(ii)

@

Earnings / (loss) per share
The following is @ computation of earnings per share and a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Net {loss¥ profit for the year for calculation of basic and diluied EPS (2,178} (845)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS in lakh 44 44
Basic earnings / (loss) per share INR {49.79) (19.31)
Dilutive earnings / (loss) per share INR (49.79) (19.31)

There have been no transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of aﬁthurisaﬁon of these financial statements.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities

As at Asat

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts frefer note (2) below] 118 29
Income tax demand [refer note (b) below] 224 227
Value Added Tax demand {refer noie (c)i) below] 64 64
Entry Tax demand {refer note (cXii) below] 44
450 320

Legal cases not provided for INR 118 lakh (March 31,2018: INR 29 lakh) as the Company has been legally advised that the outcome is likely to be in favour of the Company.

Tncome tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax authorities for payment of additional tax of INR 224 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 227 lakh) upon completion of their tax
review ot the for the assessment years 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15 & 2015-16. The tax demands are mainly on account of disallowance of a portion of the tax holiday claimed by
the Company under the Income tax Act. The matter are pending before the Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals).

Value Added Tax demand comprise demand from the VAT authorities for payment of additional tax amounting to INR 64 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 64 lakh) upon completion of
their fax review for the assessment year 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2012-13 and 2014-15. The tax demands ‘are mainly oni account of classification of goods and mis-match in
credit. The matters are pending before appellate authorities, Out of the above, the Company has deposited INR 26 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 26 lakh) under protest.

Entry tax demand comprise demand from VAT authorities of West Bengal under West Bengal Tax on Entry of Goods into Local Areas Act, 2012 for the period 2015-16 and 2016-
17 amounting to INR 44 lakh (March 31, 2018: Nil) which are pending before the appellant authorities. The tax demands are mainly on account of non-payment of tax on goods
imported into the state.

The Company is contesting the above demands and the management based on its internal assessment and based on advise from consultanis believe that its position will likely be
upheld in the appellate process and the probability of any outflow is less likely. Accordingly, no tax or legal expense has been accrued in these financial statements for the above

demands. The management belicves that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse cffect on the company's financial position and results of
operations and henoe no provision has been made in respect of above matters.

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated 28th February, 2019 relating to provident fund matter. However, there is
uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement and period from which the same applies and accordingly, the impact, if any, is not ascertainable and consequently no
effect has been given in the accounts.
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Commitments

Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
- Property, plant and equipments 5 14
14
Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 49 16
Interest duc on above 20 7

69 23
The amount of inferest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment - 2
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 7 -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as 13 7
above are actually paid to the smal! enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006

20 g

Transfer Pricing

The Company had appoinied independent consultants for conducting a Transfer pricing study to determine whether the transactions with associated enterprise were underiaken at
varm length price”. The management confirms that all international transactions with associated enterprise are undertaken at negotiated contracted price on usual commercial terms
and is confident of there being no adjustment on completion of the study. Adjustment, if any aising from the transter pricing study shall be accounted for as and when the study is
completed.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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M

(i)

Employee benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contritution plan for qualifying employees. Under the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute
a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised INR 156 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 128 lakh) for Provident Fund
contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

Defined benefit plans
The Company offers the employes benefit schemes of Gratuity to its employees. Benefits payable to cligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a
defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The scheme is unfunded and the following fable summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and Joss and assets
recognized in the balance sheet for the respective years.

Year énded Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Components of employer expense
Current service cost 31 27
Past service cost - 2
Interest cost 7 5
Total exp recogaized in the Stat ¢ of Profit and Less 38 34
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans recogaised in Other Comprehensive Income
Effects of change in financial assumptions 2 -
Effects of experignce variance {i.e. Actual CXpETIENcE VS assumpiions) {2) 3
Total remeasurements recognised in OCI (gain)/loss [(U] 3
Actual contribution and benefit payments for the year
Actual benefit payments 10 12
Net asset / (liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 128 100
Fair value of plan assets . . - -
Net asset / (liahility) recoguized in the Balance Sheet (128) (100)
Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year

Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year : 100 75
Current service cost 31 27
Inferest cost 7 5
Past Service Cost - - 2
Re-measurement (or Actuarial (gains)/insses) anising from :

- change in financial assumpiions 2 -

- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) @ 3
Benefits paid (10) (12)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 128 100
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Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 7.19% 7.4%

Salary escalation % 5%
Mortality tables LALM 06-08 Ultimate LALLM 06-08 Uliimate
Aditrition ’ 15% 15%

Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate next year -

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securiics as ot the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, lake account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply
and demand factors in the employment market,

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:

Yenr ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (- / +1%) 9 ® ‘ 6 5)
Salary Growth Rate (- /+ 1%) ‘ (8 9 © 6
Adtrition Rate (- + 50%) 2 ® 3) m
Montality Rate (-7 + 10%) © 0 o) 0
The expected benefit payments in future years is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Next | year 20 13
Next2 to 5 years 67 54
Next 6 10 10 years 167 47
110 47

More than 10 years

(This space has been left blank intentionally}
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30 Segment information
The Company is invoived in the business of manufacturing and sale of skin-care, hair-care and body-care products and is a single segment of cosmetic producis. Based on the
management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision maker {CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources at the Company level.
Company's revenue from geographies' individually contributing 10 percent or more of the Company’s revenues and segment assets are shown separately as below:

Geographic Segment Year ended Year ended

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
(refer note 2.3)

India 18,064 19,402

Middle Bast 717 846

Rest of Asia 795 922

Rest of the world 90 42

Revenue from contracts with customers 19,666 21,212

All the non current assets of the Company are located in India,

31 Related party transactions
{a) Names of related parties and related party relationship
Related parties where control exists
Holding company VLCC Health Care Limited
Subsidiary company . VLCC Wellness Research Centre Private Limited

Vanity Cube Mobile SPA and Saloon Private Limited
VLCC Online Services Private Limited

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Fellow subsidiaries VLCC Healthcare (Bangladesh) Pvt Lid.
VLCC Personal care (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd.
VYLCC Healthcare Lanka (P) Ltd
VLCC Middle East LLC, Dubai
VLCC Singapore PTE Limited
Wyann International (M) SDN, Malaysia
Celblos Dermal Research Centre Pte Lid.
Bellewave Cosmetics Pte Lid., Singapore
VLCC Wellness (East Africa) Ltd
VLCC International Qatar

Key managerial personnel Natarajan MV [Director, resigned w.e.f. June 29, 2019]
Sandeep Ahuja. [Non-Executive Director]
Sanjay Mehta [Non-Executive Independent Director]

Individual having significant influence over the Company - Vandana Luthra -
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(b)  Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 and outstanding balance as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
()  Revenue
Holding company
- VLCC Health Care Limiied 870 783
Subsidiary compaty
- VLCC Orline Services Private Limited 25 52
- VLCC Vanity Cube Mobile SPA and Saloon Private Limited 46 22
Fellow subsidiaries
- Bellewave Cosmetics Pte Ltd., Singapore 52 2
- Celblos Dermal Research Centre Pte Ltd. 3 17
- VLCC Healtheare Lanka (P) Ltd 2 .
- VLCC Healthcare {Bangladesh) Pvt Lid 16 13
- VLCC Middle East LLC 635 763
- VLCC Wellness (East Africa) Lid 2 -
- VLCC International, Qatar 18 94
(i)  Expenses recovered on account of freight
- VLCC Middle East LLC 51 78
- VLCC Healthcare (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd 1 1
- VLCC Wellness (East Africa) Ltd 1
- VL.CC Healtheare Lanka (P) Ltd 0 -
- Bellewave Cosmetics Pte. Ltd, 1 i
- Celblos Dermal Research Ceatre Pte. Ltd. 1 2
- VLCC Intemational, Qatar 3 4
{iv}  Purchase of goods
Holding company
- VLCC Health Care Limited 0 27
Subsidiary company
- VLCC Online Services Private Limited 8 5
Fellow subsidiaties
- Bellewave Cosmetics Pte Ltd, Singapore 208 142
(iv)  Expenses
Rent
Holding company
+ VLCC Health Care Limited 17 -
Subsidiarv com;
- VLCC Wellness Rescarch Centre P Lid 46 4
Market Support Fees {discontinued w.e.f. December 31, 2018)
Fellow subsidiaries :
- VLCC Singapore PTE Limited 186 232
- VLCC Middle East LLC 249 309
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v}

z

U]

Consultancy charges
individual having significant influence over the Cornpany

- Vandana Luthra 176 166
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company
Huolding company
- VLCC Health Care Limited * 0 28
* Absolute number before round off is Rs. 11,372
Managetial Remuneration
Key managemen( personnel
Short term employee benefits 152 126
Termination henefits 6 6
Total compensation paid to key managerial personnel 158 132
- Natarajan MV 158 132
Balance outstanding at the end of the vear
Trade receivables
Holding company
- VLCC Health Care Limiied 378 672
Subsidiary company
- VLCC Online Services Private Limited 55 50
- VLCC Vanity Cube Mobile SPA and Saloon Private Limited 23 28
Fellow subsidigries
- VLCC Middle East LLC* 3,152 2,668
- VLCC Healthcare Lanka (P) Ltd 5 5
- Celblos Dermal Research Centre Pte Ltd. 9 8
- VLCC Wellness (East Africa) Ltd 2 (D]
- Wyann Infernational {M} SDN, Malaysia - 10
- VLCC Healthcare (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd - 3
- Bellewave Cosmetics Pte Ltd, Singapore 46 10
2 0

- VLCC International, Qatar

“* Note on dues from VLCC Middle East LLC

Trade receivables as at year end include INR 3,152 lakhs recoverab)
for more than one year. The Company has collected INR 374 Lakhs
has recorded expected credit loss for time valus amounting to Rs. 400 Lakhs, Further,

amount.

le from VLCC Middle East LI.C on account of sales of products, out of which INR 2,480 Lakhs is outstanding
during the year out of the old outstanding and agreed to collect the remaining amounts over next four years and
the Company has informed to the Tespective authorised dealer about delay in collection of
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(i)

(iii)

W
[ )

33

o]

Trade payables
Holding company
- VLCC Health Care Limited -

Subsidiary company
- VLCC Online Services Private Limited -

- VLCC Wellness Research Centre P Lid 0
Fellow subsidiaries
" - Bellewave Cosmetics Pte Lid, Singapore 108
- VLCC Singapore Pte Limited ’ 57
- VLCC Healthcare (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd 3

Individual having significant influence over the Company
- Vandana Luthra 16

Details of leasing arrangements

51

n

79
59

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for office premises, The lease is non-cancellable and is for a period of three years and renewable for further period

based on mutual agreement of the parties. The non cancellable period has expired as at the year end and thus there are no commitments.

Rental expenses towards operating lease charged to the statement of profit and loss account are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss [refer note 24] 128 103
Tneome Taxes
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit maultiplied by applicable Indian iax rate for March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018
Particulars ) Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Accounting profit before tax and after exceptional items: (2,119) (1,135)
Tax at statutory Tate (@29.12% (2018; 34.608%) (617) (393)
Tax Impacts of following non deductible iterns:
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 5 7
(nthers 5 7
Unabsorbed losses ’ 603 150
Effect of rate change from previous year 67 -
Others @ 63)
At the effective income tax rate as applicable 59 (292)
Tncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 59 (292)
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Deferred tax

Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and Loss

Ay at As at Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for compensated absences, gratuity . 56 ‘ 56 . ) 13
Refund liability 88 85 3 -
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory 109 125 (i6) 17
Provision for statutory bonus 5 7 2) 3
Provision / {reversal of provision) for doubtful trade receivables 347 444 97 240
Provision for doubtful advances 19 7 12 5
Security deposit adjustment 0 1 S -
Prepaid assets adjustment (30) (37 7 m
Asset retirement obligation adjustment 10 10 [} 1
Deferred grant adjustment 5 7 @ (1)
Deferred tax asset (A) 609 705 (96) 337
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax linbilities
O difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 247 284 37 45
Deferred tax linbility (B) 247 284 an 45
Deferred tax income / {expense) 9 292
Nei deferred iax asset [A-B] 362 421
MAT Credit Entitlement
MAT credit entitlement 1,654 1,654 - -
1,654 1,654 - -

Total Deferved Tax Asset ' 2,016 2075 (59) 202

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, requires that the board of directors of every eligible
company, shall ensure that the Company spends, in every financial year, at least 2% of the average profits of the company made during the three immediaicly preceding financial
years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. The details of CSR expenditure is as follows:

w
=

Year ended As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 9 36
Amount spent during the year on:
Donation to KHUSHII 18 16
Donation to Sti Sai Leela Trust - 3
Amar Jyoti Charitable Trust - 1
Friendicoes - 1
18 21

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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35 Finagcial instruments - Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, borrowings, and capital creditors. Further, the Company has also accepted security deposits from
various carrying and forwarding agents in lieu of company’s goods lying in their warchouses. The main purpose of these financial lighilities is 1o finance the Company’s
operations and to support its operations, The Company’s principal financial assets includes security deposits, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior level management oversees the management of these risks and is supported by
team handling Treasury function that advises on the appropriate financial risk governance framework to mitigate potential adverss effects on the financial performance of the

company.

A. Market risk
Matket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of o financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The objective of market risk

management is to manage and contral market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the reurn.
Miarket risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency Tisk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. Sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of
the assumed changes in respestive market risks. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-
. retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and labilities.

i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company'’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market inierest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates, Company does not have any
fixed rale borrowings as at year end.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 0 a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.50% increase or decrease in the interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrease in Effect on profit/loss

bagis points hefore tax
March 31, 2019
INR Borrowings +50 (25}
INR Borrowings =50 25
March 31, 2018 .
INR Borrowings +50 (19)
INR Borrowings -50 19

ii} Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s €xposure
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's aperaiing activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

“The Company has (ransactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases in currencies other than the Company's functional currency, which is INR. The
company's financial state of affairs can b affected by movements in foreign currencies, primarily US Dollar, SGD, GBP & Canadian Dollar.
The Company does not hedge any foreign currency exposure as the amount involved is non material as of now.

The carrying amounts of the Compary’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in different cumencies are as follows:

In equivalent INR Lakhs
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
~Asat
Financial . e Financial Financial
Financial liabilities liabiliti
United States Dollar (JSD) : 3,221 51 2,764 1
Singapore Dallar (SGD) - 108 4 2
Great Britain Pound (GBP) 1 - 1 -
Canadian Dollar (CAD) : - 1 - 0
Euro (EUR) 1 - - -
Total 3,223 160 2,769 3
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The Company’s exposure to foreign currency arises where Company holds financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in currency different from the functional
currency of the Compaity., A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR, US doliar or other foreign currencies against all other currencies a¢ 31 March would
have affected the measuremens of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below.

Change in foreign Effect on profit before

currency ral tax
March 31, 2019
US Dollars +5% 159
-5% (159}
SGD +5% (5)
-5% 5

Effect of change in closing exchange rate by 5% in case of GBP, CAD and EUR will not have any major impact over profit before tax

March 31, 2018 ]
TS Dollars +5% ' 138
-5% (138)

Effect of change in closing exchange rate by 504 in case of GBP, CAD and SGD will not have any major impact over profit before tax
B. it vis|
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations.

. In respect of trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure. Significant revenue is collected by the Company in advance
before rendering the services to the retail customers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (before impairment) as of the reporting date is as follows:

Less than 6 months  More than 6 Total

months
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2018 4,702 3,705 3,407
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2019 5.847 4,157 10,005

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix 1o measure expected credit losses. The provision rates at¢ based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasenable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of futare economic condifions. The Company follows an age based provisiening policy to cover the risk of frade receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date for trade receivables disclosed in above.

Liquiditv ris}

Liquidity risk i the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its Financial liabilities that are seitied by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and bank loans.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is 1o ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and
deploys a robust cash management systerm. The Company manages liquidify risk by maintaining adequate reserves, borrowing lisbilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, profile of financial assets and lisbilitics. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost. The table below
provides the details regarding contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
" Less than 1 year

- Borrowings 4,260 4,306
- Trade payables 4,281 4,613
- Other financial liabilities 311 325
Total 8,852 4,244
More than 1 year
- Borrowings 1,054 768
- Qther financial liabilities 78 77
Total 1,132 845
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36 Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain strong capital base s¢ as to mainiain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of business. The
management monitors the retum on capital and profitability.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns thai might be possible with higher lgvels of borrowing and the advantages and sceurity afforded by a
sound capital position. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the sharcholder value.

Company monitors capital using gearing ratio which is calculated as underlying net debt divided by total equity plus underlying net debt. The Company's policy is to keep the
gearing ration below 40%. The Company measures underlying net debt as total liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings, excluding any dues to
subsidiaries or group company less cash and cash equivalents. For the purpose of Capital management, fotal capital includes issued equity capital, share premivm and ail other
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company-

Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio at March 31,2019 is as follows:

Gearing ratip

As at Asat

March 31,2019  March 31,2018

Borrowings (Refer to note 13(a)} 5314 5073
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note 7(d)} . (368) } (240}
Adjusted Net debt 4,946 4,833
Total Equity 9,890 12,068
Total Equity 9,390 12,068
Total Equity and net debt 14,836 16,901
Gearing ratio (Net Debt/ Total Equity) 33% 29%

No changes were made in the objectives, policics or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

(This space has been left blunk intentionatly)
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37 Fair values

The management has assessed the fair value of all the financial assefs and liabilities ineluding cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, security deposits, other financial assets,
investments, trade payables, borrowings and ather financia! Tiabilities, approximate their carrying amounts which is at amortised cost.

Accordingly, the Company does not have any financial instruments 10 be classified under three levels of fair value measurement hierarchy in accordance with Ind AS 113,

(This space has been left blank intentionaliy)
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